

PRLS Board Meeting Minutes

May 18, 2023

The regular meeting of the Parkland Regional Library System Board was called to order at 10:05 a.m. on Thursday May 18, 2023 in the Combined Board Room, Lacombe.

- Present: Teresa Rilling (Board Chair), Alison Barker-Jevne, Jul Bissell, Doug Booker, Deb Coombes, Jaime Coston, Edna Coulter, Teresa Cunningham, Jeff Eckstrand, Richard Forsberg, Elaine Fossen, Dwayne Fulton, Clark German, Barbara Gibson, Barb Gilliat, Twyla Hale, Pam Hansen, Dana Kreil, Stephen Levy, Julie Maplethorpe, Joy-Anne Murphy, Norma Penney, Leonard Phillips, Ray Reckseidler, Deb Smith, Les Stulberg, Delaney Thoreson, Carlene Wetthuhn, Angie Fricke (alt. for Shannon Wilcox), Darren Wilson
- With Regrets: Cody Hillmer, Connie Hueslman, Gord Lawlor, Marc Mousseau, Bill Rock, Pat Toone, Shannon Wilcox, Bill Windsor, Janice Wing
- Absent: Cal David, Amanda Derksen, Kathy Hall, Michael Hildebrandt, Ricci Matthews, Jackie Northey, Shawn Peach, Diane Roth, Sandy Shipton, Michelle Swanson, Doug Weir, Patricia Young
- Staff: Kara Hamilton, Andrea Newland, Ron Sheppard, Tim Spark, Donna Williams
- **Guests:** Lindsey Bauman and Erin Switenky (MNP)

Call to Order

Meeting called to order at 10:05 a.m. by Teresa Rilling.

As part of PRLS' legislative compliance procedures, board members who send regrets are excused at the beginning of each meeting.

Motion by Stephen Levy to excuse Cody Hillmer, Connie Hueslman, Gord Lawlor, Marc Mousseau, Bill Rock, Pat Toone, Shannon Wilcox, Bill Windsor, and Janice Wing from attendance at the board meeting on February 23, 2023 and remain members of the Parkland Board in good standing.

> CARRIED PRLS 24/2023

1.1 Agenda

1.1.2 Adoption of the Agenda

Rilling asked if there were any additions or deletions to the agenda. There were none.



Motion by Len Phillips to accept the agenda as presented.

CARRIED PRLS 25/2023

1.2. Approval of Minutes

Rilling asked if there were any amendments to the February 23, 2023 minutes. There were none.

Motion by Ray Reckseidler to approve the minutes of the February 23, 2023 meeting as presented.

CARRIED PRLS 26/2023

1.3. Business arising from the minutes of the February 23, 2023 meeting Rilling asked if there was any business arising from the minutes. There was none.

2. Business Arising from the Consent Agenda

Rilling asked if there was any business arising from the consent agenda. There was none.

Motion by Barb Gilliat to approve the consent agenda as presented.

CARRIED PRLS 27/2023

3.1. Approval of the 2022 Parkland Audit

Lindsey Bauman and Erin Switenky from Parkland's audit company, MNP, presented Parkland's audit. In their report, the auditors state:

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Library as at December 31, 2022, and the results of its operations, changes in its net debt, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Parkland received a clean audit. Bauman noted the three items in the management letter from last year have been resolved, which shows the commitment of Parkland Staff to ensuring financial management is sound.

Motion by Elaine Fossen to approve the Parkland Regional Library Board 2022 Audit Findings, Report to the Board of Directors/Executive Committee for December 31, 2022, and the Financial Statements for December 31, 2022, as presented.

> CARRIED PRLS 28/2023

3.2 Audit Policy

Sheppard reviewed the potentially changed audit policy from the Parkland Policies and Bylaws document. At the March 16th Executive Committee meeting, staff were directed to create a draft policy allowing the Executive Committee of the board to approve the audit. Parkland's auditors



stated it is typical practice to approve financial statements at the initial presentation to a board or Executive Committee representing the board. Parkland's auditors are required to perform audit testing with the Parkland staff until the audit is approved.

Staff inquired with the Public Library Services Branch (PLSB) whether there were any legislative requirements that would impede the Executive Committee from being the body responsible for approving Parkland's audit. They responded that there is "*nothing explicit in the legislation. However, it is implied that finances are the responsibility of the corporate board as a whole, not the Executive.*"

One advantage of having the audit approved earlier is that Parkland might receive its government operating grant and the rural library services grant earlier. Submitting an approved audit is one of the Government of Alberta's annual grant requirements.

After some discussion, a motion was made:

Motion by Joy-Anne Murphy to hold a special online meeting of the full board to coincide with the completion of the audit for the full purpose of approving the Parkland Audit.

DEFEATED PRLS 29/2023

Motion by Deb Smith to change PRLS Executive Committee policy to read *"The Executive Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving Parkland's audit which will be forwarded to the board at the board's next meeting.*

CARRIED PRLS 30/2023

Lindsey Bauman and Erin Switenky left the meeting at 11:09 a.m.

11:10 – 11:19 Comfort break

3.3. 2024 Budget/Requisition Increase

Sheppard reviewed a preliminary budget for 2024 for information. In the budget, there were no changes made to the requisition, or salary and benefits lines, excepting to adjust for current staffing levels. In the case of provincial operating funding, staff assumed the increases announced this year will continue next year.

All other adjustments to specific lines throughout the budget are a reflection of estimates based on inflation or actual costs over previous years.



Without addressing salaries, there is an initial balance of +\$30,256 at this time.

Motion by Deb Coombes to receive for information.

CARRIED PRLS 31/2023

3.4. Salary Grid

Sheppard explained. At the September 15, 2022 board meeting, following the Compensation Review presented by Dr. Margaret Law, a motion was made "*to direct Ron Sheppard to work with Dr. Law to develop a seven-step payroll grid to replace Parkland's current grid*". This motion was a result of a recommendation from the Compensation Review which stated: "*The salary grid has an unusual number of steps. The recommendation is 5-8 steps, which is an estimate of the number of years that it takes to master the job.*" Currently, there are fifteen steps on Parkland's salary grid with uniform increments of 2.5%.

Based on Law's Compensation Review, Parkland's salary ranges were acceptable. However, the Executive Committee was unable to provide direction to staff regarding the adoption of a new salary grid.

The complexity of reducing the steps of the salary grid were such that the Executive Committee could not resolve the issue at their last two meetings. Instead, they decided to form a subcommittee which would examine this issue comprehensively. Reducing the steps of the grid encompasses Parkland's whole compensation philosophy, policy, and budget.

Since Parkland still has to develop a budget for 2024, the Executive Committee recommended using the current salary grid and compensation policy for one more year since it is unlikely a new grid can be established before the budget needs to be approved by the board in September.

Volunteers from the Executive Committee for the subcommittee include Deb Smith, Barb Gilliat, Len Phillips, and Janice Wing.

Motion by Deb Smith to use the current compensation policy to create the 2024 budget, and to create a subcommittee to work on creating a new compensation policy and salary grid.

CARRIED

PRLS 32/2023

Motion by Les Stulberg to appoint Twyla Hale, Jul Bissell, and Stephen Levy to join the compensation review subcommittee.

CARRIED PRLS 33/2023

Twyla Hale left the meeting at 12:00 p.m.



3.5. Marketing and Advocacy Committee Report

Norma Penney reviewed the Advocacy Committee report. She explained the history of the committee, its expansion to the other library systems, and its many recent efforts, especially those associated with the provincial election.

Despite recent increases to library grants from the Government of Alberta, the Advocacy Committee believes library boards need to still be visiting current MLAs to thank them for the additional grant funding with an undertone that ideally more needs to be done to sustain rural public library service in particular.

Many materials have been created to assist library boards with this advocacy effort.

After Penney's update, Sheppard reviewed the Marketing Report, and indicated where to find the latest Municipal ROIs on Parkland's website at the following URL:

<u>Return on Investment - Parkland Regional Library System (https://www.prl.ab.ca/about-us/return-on-investmentprl.ab.ca)</u>

Board members are strongly encouraged to download and print their municipal ROIs and present them to council.

In addition, Parkland has created a marketing strategy to contribute to the success of the main priorities that directly relate to the main goals of the Strategic Plan 2023-2025. This plan is meant to be a general guiding document, with detailed action items to be determined by Parkland staff.

Motion by Doug Booker to receive the Marketing and Advocacy Committee report for information.

CARRIED PRLS 34/2023

3.6. ALTA Representative

Sheppard reviewed. Former Parkland Board member Bob Green is stepping down from his longtime position as the Parkland representative on the board of the Alberta Library Trustee Association (ALTA). His term will be ending on May 31st this year. Green has asked for nominations or volunteers to serve on the ALTA board.

Sheppard asked for nominations or volunteers. Barb Gilliat volunteered to be Parkland's new ALTA representative.

3.7.1. Director's Report

- 3.7.2. Library Services Report
- 3.7.3. I.T. Report
- 3.7.4. Finance & Operations Report



Rilling asked if there were any questions regarding the Director's

___ Report, Library Services Report, I.T. Report, or the Finance and

Operations Report. There were none.

Motion by Len Phillips to receive the Director's Report, Library Services Report, I.T. Report, and Finance and Operations Report for information.

CARRIED PRLS 35/2023

3.12. Parkland Community Update

Stettler and Stettler County formed an intermunicipal library board agreement three years ago, which has just expired. They have renewed the agreement for five more years and celebrated that fact on May 4th.

The Penhold & District Public Library have been running programs with the assistance of children from the community. In addition, their friends of the library group will hold an artisan gala with a chocolatier, caricature artist, and more.

The Sedgewick & District Municipal Library has been in their new location downtown for six months and support/demand for the library has continued to increase.

The Village of Cremona recommends a CBC podcast by Terry O'Reilly about marketing for libraries. They have also set up a small free library in their community and encourages others to do the same.

The Clive Public Library is holding a program called "Books and Cooks" for pre-school aged children that has been very popular.

The Caroline Municipal Library has been holding a program called "Sensory Wednesday" featuring sand and water play that has been extremely popular. They are also holding film nights through the summer.

Motion by Dana Kreil to receive the Parkland Community Update for information.

CARRIED PRLS 36/2023

4. Adjournment

Motion by Norma Penney to adjourn the meeting at 12:17 p.m.

CARRIED PRLS 37/2023

Chair